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MIDTOWN SANTA FE 
ECONOMIC ANALYSIS & URBAN PLANNING 
RFP SOLICITATION:  ‘19/37/P 
 
REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATIONS 
Questions & Answers (Q&A) 
 
The following are questions and answers generated by interested respondents within 
the time period provided by the City ending on May 7, 2019, and extended to May 10, 
2019 for interested respondents to submit Requests for Clarifications. 
 

1. Are there presentation or other materials from the pre-submission conference that 
are available? 
 
No.  There are no presentation materials from the pre-submission conference.  The 
main content of the Pre-Submission Conference restated the content of the RFP and to 
respondent to requests for clarifications. 
 

2. Does the City anticipate giving the notice to proceed for Scope A along with the City 
approval scheduled for June 17-21 or following the full city council approval and 
Recommendation of Award on July 31?  
 
The contract and subsequent notice to proceed will be issued upon approval by the full 
city council. 
  

3. There is an appraisal, dated 2017, for the Midtown property on the City’s Office of 
Economic Development website completed by CBRE.  Does the city anticipate 
procuring an appraiser to refresh the appraisal for the entire parcel and each 
constituent parcel?  If yes, will it be during the time frame of this engagement? 
 
To be determined.  However, as provided in the Scope of Work, the purpose of a 
combined economic analysis and urban planning team is to undertake the technical 
analysis and standard practice for analyzing and projecting the intersection between 
land values, phasing, land uses, and density patterns, and not a stagnant appraisal. 
 

4. Has the City procured an appraiser or market analyst to undertake recent real estate 
market assessment for residential, commercial, and office segments for the Midtown 
Property or the Midtown LINC district?  
 
No.  The selected economic analysis and urban planning team will advise the City 
regarding additional focused data that may be needed to perform their scope of work.  
Furthermore, it is anticipated that the developers and business entities interested in 
purchasing or leasing the site or parcels will conduct their own market analysis and 
appraisals as part of the due diligence and negotiations process for disposition and 
development. 
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5. Does the City have a preference for any of the conceptual plans already submitted?  

Will the Planning Team be expected to model one or more of these conceptual plans?  
Or, will the Planning Team be expected to create a new master plan? 
 
No.  The City does not have a preference regarding the vision and concept plans that 
have been generated for the Midtown site.  The Planning Team is not expected to 
generate a master plan.  The Planning Team is expected to establish a development 
framework (not a master plan) that allows for scenario planning based on land uses and 
land values, as well as primary street patterns and infrastructure, that will optimize the 
site to achieve the vision and objectives outlined in the Midtown Planning Guidelines.   
The development framework will provide a guide for evaluating and negotiating future 
disposition and development proposals and agreements. 
 

6. Does the City expect the Planning Team to work with an already prepared or to be 
prepared mixed-use development strategy for the site?   
 
No.  The Midtown Planning Guidelines will be used as the foundation for creating a 
development framework. 
 

7. Given that the financial modeling effort will require extensive inputs and assumptions 
to arrive at residual land values and income potential for the developers, e.g. by each 
real estate component: office/retail, residential, academic, etc., does the City 
anticipate using a Public Private Partnership model, or similar, for realizing the 
development potential for all or some parts of the site? 
 
The City anticipated overseeing a public/private partnership development model.  The 
results of the solicitation process with developers and business entities will provide 
further information into that model at that time. 
 

8. Will the City provide any additional incentives specific to the site that might be 
needed to attract a large-scale mixed-use project, e.g., infrastructure support, Tax 
Increment Financing, Opportunity Zone investments, grants, and other financial and 
non-financial support? 
 
To be determined.  The City will make every effort to leverage the value of the land, as 
one incentive measure.  The Planning Team will have a role in advising on strategically 
leveraging the resources that are available to the city, as well as to selected developers 
and business entities, based on this and similar public/private development projects. 
 

9. Will the city be able to arrange meetings with prospective developers, and local 
stakeholders as needed? 
 
Yes. The City will undertake an expression of interest process to allow the City to engage 
interested developers and business entities to further refine and negotiate disposition 
and development proposals. 
 

10. Is the property in an Opportunity Zone?  
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Yes.  The Midtown Property is in an Opportunity Zone.  Please see the following Office 
of Economic Development webpage: 
https://www.santafenm.gov/opportunity_zones_in_santa_fe 
 
 

11. Does the scope of work for the Planning Team require substantial community 
input/charette/public participation activities? 
 
No.  As part of its commitment to equitable and sustainable development, the City 
issuing a separate and focused RFP specific for Civic Engagement.  The Planning Team 
and the Civic Engagement Team will interact and debrief at benchmarks in the process 
of performing their mutual scopes of work to inform and ensure feasibility, viability, and 
desirability of outcomes and deliverables generated by each team.  The Planning Team 
will be encouraged to participate in the Civic Engagement process to listen and learn, 
and to provide data and guidance, as needed.  But, civic engagement is not in the scope 
of the Planning Team whose role is more technical in nature. 
 

12. Will inquiries and questions generated at the Pre-Submission Conference be made 
available to interested respondents to this RFP? 
 
Yes.  Please visit the RFP web page for Related Documents. 
https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p 
 
 

13. Will the City provide a professional building assessment of the buildings to understand 
building conditions in the asset valuation process? 
 
To be determined.  However, full building assessments will primarily be the 
responsibility of developers or business entities interested in purchasing or leasing 
property, which will be part of the due diligence process for disposition and 
development agreements between the City and the interest parties. 
 

14. Will the City provide a professional infrastructure assessment to understand the cost 
of improvements as part of understanding land valuation and improvements to be 
undertaken by developers? 
 
Same as 13 above. 
 

15. Will the City provide a professional utility(s) assessment to understand the cost of 
improvements as part of understanding land valuation and improvements to be 
undertaken by developers? 
 
Same as 13 and 14 above.  
 

16. Based on the current RFP schedule, the Economics/Planning Team may begin work in 
early August.  If the developer and business entity solicitation process begins their 
process in early Q3, the economic and land use analysis may not be complete enough 

https://www.santafenm.gov/opportunity_zones_in_santa_fe
https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p
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to inform the RFEI discussions.  How does the City envision the work of the 
Economic/Planning team will support/contribute to the REOI based on that timeline? 

The analysis and planning work of the Planning Team will overlap with the responses 
from the developer and business entity solicitation process.  However, the responses 
from the developer solicitation will also inform the analysis and scenario planning, 
which will be beneficial to the way the Planning Team focuses its efforts.  The City 
recognizes the complexity of this process, and seeks to work with a team that is 
experienced, smart, and nimble, and can advise accordingly. 
 

17. Section 3.B of the Scope of Work, states that general urban planning and design 
guidelines for design and development need to be developed as well as “identify and 
design (concept design) the major infrastructure and circulation networks within the 
Site and to the surrounding district and neighborhoods, as well as create parcels for 
disposition and development. Identify and design (concept design) public realm areas 
for programmed events and activities.  However, 1) is this process intended to take 
place prior to the land use analysis (Scope B); and, 2) please elaborate on the extent of 
this concept design if they are not fitting into a broader master plan with identified 
land uses? 
 
The City intends for an experienced Planning Team to quickly understand the Site 
context and the major land issues that will affect the economics of the overall project.  
Concepts will be used for scenario planning to establish a fundamental development 
framework that will guide the analysis of developer and business entity responses 
during the RFEI response review process.  A development framework is significantly 
different than a master plan.  Meaning, a development framework provides a high level 
approach to guide the location, density, placement of uses, and other standard urban 
planning concerns that have a direct impact on the economics of land. 
 

18. Section 3.B of the Scope of Work, Sustainable Planning and Design Guidelines, states 
that the Planning Team is expected to develop design guidelines for the design and 
development of the site and parcels.  Please elaborate on the expectations of the City 
for these guidelines in the context of the previously mentioned, this is not a master 
plan, implying that minimal urban design is expected. 
 
Yes, minimum urban design is expected from an experienced urban planning firm.  But, 
there is not an intention to establish detailed urban designs that would go through 
planning approval.   The City will be looking to the Planning Team to advise on ways that 
the City can provide guidance to developers who will be the entity responsible for 
developing master plans or parcel plans with detailed urban and architectural designs 
generated by their own design teams.  The City’s Planning Team will guide and 
represent the City’s interest in said work. 
 
 

19. What is expected duration of Scope A?  On page 15 of the RFP it states: “The term for 
the Scope of Work is eight to ten months and to conclude no later than the end of Q1 
2020’. However, given that the project will only commence on August 1st that time 
frame would take us to Q2 2020. 
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Use the number of months (8-10 months) time assumption, and disregard the calendar 
time assumption.  The City would prefer this process to undertaken more expeditiously, 
if possible. 
 

20. Could you please elaborate on the expectations of the client for Section 3.B Scope of 
Work, Disposition and Development RFP Evaluation: Advise on RFP responses to 
create a comprehensive urban planning and design approach.  At a minimum, 
expectations for deliverables and timeframe for advising would be appreciated. 
 
See 16, 17, 18, and 19 above. 

 
21. In section 6.A, Submission Requirements, it is outlined that two 3-ring binders are 

required in the submittal package.  Can these be wire bound documents? 
 
No.  Wire bound will not be accepted.  3-ring binders are required pursuant to the RFP. 
 

22. During the RFEI phase, will responding developers be required to team with a design 
firm, i.e. is that the source of the potential conflict of interest?  If developers will not 
be required to propose a team including a design firm in response to the RFEI, please 
clarify what might be the anticipated conflict of interest? 
 
Yes, developers will be expected to procure their own design teams.  The City’s 
economic analysis and urban planning team will represent the interests of the City only. 
 
The potential conflict of interest concern has been explained in the Clarifications 
provided by the City, which were generated from the pre-submission conferences.  They 
are available on the City’s Purchasing Office website:  
https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p 
 
 

23. Does the City have a preference between contracting with a Planning/Design firm or 
Economic Development Consultant as the prime consultant? 
 
No.  The City does not have a preference regarding this matter. 
 

 

24. What is the expected ratio of effort between Scope A and Scope B? 
 
The scope of work is sequential.  This will be determined collaboratively with the 
Planning Team and the City while undertaking Scope A. 
 
 
 

25. From the pre-proposal meeting, it was noted that the team selected for the Economic 
Analysis and Urban Planning phase would be precluded from being on the master 
development team.  How far does that separation of scopes extend?  Namely, if a 
consultant is selected to work on the Economic and Urban Planning scope, will that 

https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p
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firm be eligible to bid on a site-specific project, say to design a building, once the 
overall Midtown Santa Fe planning framework is completed? 
 
See 22 above.  
 
The potential conflict of interest concern has been explained in the Clarifications 
provided by the City, which were generated from the pre-submission conferences.  They 
are available on the City’s Purchasing Office website:  
https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p 
 
 

26. For the urban planning scope, how does the City view the end product of Scope A as 
different from a master plan? 
 
See 16, 17, 18, and 19 above.  The experienced Planning Team will advise and propose 
appropriate deliverables accordingly. 
 

27. What is the City’s preferred schedule for completion of Scope A? 
 
See 19 above. 
 

28. What is the revised date for when the City expects to be entering negotiations with 
developers? 
 
The City anticipates issuing the solicitation for developers and business entities in Q2 
2019 with responses in Q3-Q4.  The City may change said date at its discretion.  The 
Planning Team will advise and assist in prioritizing said responses and the due diligence 
process with selected developer and business entity respondents. 
 

29. For the concept design of infrastructure and public realm, does the City require 
precedent imagery, planning drawings, and/or renderings within this phase of work? 
 
That may be one of several ways to illustrate and communicate an urban design 
framework.  The City anticipates looking at other development frameworks used on 
similar projects to ensure best practices, and seeks a Planning Team that has similar 
experience.  Understand that the developer is ultimately responsible for submitting 
master plans or site plans with detailed urban and architectural designs. The Planning 
Team will provide guidance in the most effective and efficient manner possible.  The 
Planning Team is not the urban design team, which will be procured by the developer. 
 
 
 
 

30. Is City staff available to provide high-level cost estimates or cost assumptions for 
proposed site infrastructure? 
 
To the extent that the City Public Works office and the Asset Development Manager has 
information, said information will be made readily available to the Planning Team.  

https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p
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Information not available, but absolutely necessary to perform the Scope of Work, may 
be procured, at the City’s discretion.  However, understand that the selected developer 
and business entity respondents will be responsible for performing due diligence 
activities, as is standard in real estate transactions.  Said assessments will be used during 
the disposition and development agreement due diligence and negotiation process 
between the selected developer respondents and the City. 
 

31. Can you please clarify the submission deadline, May 21st or May 22nd? 
 
The submission deadline is May 21, 2019. 
 

32. Typically, our Approach to Scopes of Work are several pages long.  Do you want our 
full Approach in the cover letter itself, or should it be described briefly and included in 
full elsewhere? 
 
The RFP does not direct the length of the Cover Letter sections.  We advise using your 
creativity to provide the relevant and required information to the City’s RFP reviewers in 
the most clear and succinct manner. 
 

33. Where would you prefer we include the Non-Disclosure Form (Exhibit D), the 
Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form (Exhibit E), and our comments on the terms of 
the Agreement?  Should we create a “Tab I” for these materials? 
 
Yes.  Submission Packages may include a Tab I for Exhibit E Non-Disclosure Form and 
comments on the terms of the Agreement. 
 
Exhibit D does not need to be signed and submitted.  It is a conflict of interest form for 
Evaluators of Proposals, and is for information purposes only.  We apologize for the 
confusion. 
 

34. Are both respondents and their subcontractors required to include Exhibit D and 
Exhibit E in the proposal submission? Or will those forms be executed once the 
winning firm is chosen?  
 
See 33 above. 
 

35. Please clarify the conflict of interest statement.  Exhibit D as included in the initial RFP 
is written for reviewers of proposals not those who are submitting proposals. 
 
See 33 above. 

 
36. At the pre-proposal conference, it was stated that the selected bidder for this 

"Economic Analysis and Urban Planning" RFP would be ineligible to participate on 
teams for the forthcoming Developer RFEI.  Please confirm whether this applies to the 
prime contractor alone or if it extends to all tiers of sub-consultants. 
 
See 22 above. 
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The potential conflict of interest concern has been explained in the Clarifications 
provided by the City, which were generated from the pre-submission conferences.  They 
are available on the City’s Purchasing Office website:  
https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p 
 

37. Can you please clarify the preferred timeline for Scope A?  However, during the call 
May 3 it was implied that portion of the project should be wrapped-up by the end of 
2019.  But, earlier information indicated a more aggressive timeline. 
 
See 19 above. 

https://www.santafenm.gov/bids_rfps/detail/1937p

